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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Sai Life Sciences Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sai Life Sciences Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and

the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (*Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024,
and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (“"SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

e Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

e If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management and Board of Directors is responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

W e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company
and its branches to express an opinion on the standalone financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements
of such entities included in the standalone financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for not complying with the
requirement of audit trail as stated in (i)(vi) below.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,

2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The modifications relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, are stated in paragraph (b) above.
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g)

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements - refer note 41 to the standalone financial
statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 42 to the financial statements no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 42 to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable

and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

V. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

Vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company, has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March

31,

2024, wherein (refer note 47 to the standalone financial statements):

a) for one accounting software, audit trail feature was not enabled for the period

April 1, 2023 to March 30, 2024, post which audit trail feature was enabled at
the application level. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on whether there
was any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

b) for another accounting software operated by a third party software service

provider for maintaining payroll records, based on the independent auditor’s
system and organisation controls report covering the requirement of audit trail,
the software has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility at the
application level and the same has operated during the period April 1, 2023 till
December 31, 2023 and there were no instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with. In the absence of an independent auditor’s system and
organisation controls report covering the audit trail requirement for the
remaining period, we are unable to comment whether the audit trail feature of
the said software was enabled and operated post December 31, 2023, for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software or whether there was any
instance of the audit trail feature been tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 21, 2024
SPK/RK/2024

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

dalipod—

Sathya P. Koushik

(Partner)

(Membership No. 206920)
(UDIN : 24206920BKANZC1860)
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Sai Life Sciences Limited ("the Company”) as at March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for
internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

\l o9

Sathya P. Koushik

(Partner)

(Membership No. 206920)
(UDIN: 24206920BKANZC1860)

Place: Hyderabad

Date: May 21, 2024
SPK/RK/2024
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

(M) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(i) (@)

(b)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment including capital
work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

Some of Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and right-of-use
assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with
a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the Property plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and
right-of-use asset at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Based on the examination of the registered sale deed/conveyance deed provided to
us, we report that, the title deeds, of all the immovable properties of land and
buildings, disclosed in the standalone financial statements included in property, plant
equipment, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.
Immovable properties of land and buildings whose title deeds have been pledged as
security for loans are held in the name of the Company based on the confirmations
directly received by us from lenders. In respect of immovable properties of land and
buildings that have been taken on lease and disclosed as right of use assets in the
standalone financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the
Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and based on information and explanations given
to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is
appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations.
No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were
noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of
account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of
time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the quarterly returns or statements comprising working capital positions and
revenue figures filed by the Company with such banks or financial institution are in
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective
quarters.
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(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

.(vii)

The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee and granted loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the
year, in respect of which

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or
provided security to any other entity during the year. The Company has provided
guarantee and details of which are given below:

Guarantees (in
million)
A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year:
A. Subsidiaries 36.20
B. Others -
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect
of above cases
C. Subsidiaries 36.20
D. Others -

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided and the terms and conditions of the
grant of all the loans provided, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

() According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans. Hence, reporting under clause (iii) (c) (d) (e) and (f) is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of making investments. The Company has not granted loans, given guarantees
and securities to which sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie,
the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it,
to the appropriate authorities.

Undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, in arrears as at March 31,

2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable are as
given below:
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Period to which
Name of Nature of the Amount the Amount Due Date
Statute Dues (Rs.)
Relates
Employee
Provident Fund
and Provident Fund 18,619 | Apr'22 to Aug’22 | Various dates
Miscellaneous
Provisions Act
1952
(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub- clause (a) above which have not been

deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are given below:

Period to
which the Amount
Amount
Name of Nature Forum where Amount Involved unpaid
Statute f Dispute is Relates ) ) Rs. i
of Dues . . : (Rs. in mio) (Rs. in
Pending (Financial : mio).
year)
Finance Act, Service High Court 3.6
’ - .64
1994 Tax Mumbai 2012-2014 12.36
Centra' Excise . Central Excise
Excise Service Tax 2007-2012 7.25 5.44
Act, 1944 Duty
Appellate Tribunal
Maharashtra Value
Value Tax Act, | pdded | Manarashtra Sales | 5449 5014 44.73 42.65
2002 Tax Tribunal
Tax
Maharashtra Value Joint
Value Tax Act, Added Commissioner 2014-2018 22.83 22.83
2002 Tax Appeals
Goods and Goods Deputy
Service Tax Act, anq Commissioner of 2017-2018 4.22 3.99
2017 Service State Tax '
Tax (Appeals)
Goods and Goods Joint
Service Tax Act, and Commissioner of 2017-2019 73.09 71.44
2017 Service Commercial Taxes '
Tax (Appeals)
Goods and Goods
Service Tax Act, and Deputy 2017-18 0.41 0.41
2017 Service Commissioner )
Tax
Income-tax Act, Commissioner of
1961 I”%’Te Income-tax 2021-2022 18.27 18.27
(Appeals)
Employees
Provident Funds c |
and . entra
Miscellaneous Prc;‘lj'gj“t Government 1996-2018 21.89 21.89
Provisions Act, Industrial Tribunal
1952

Page 10 of 12




Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

)

(a)

(b)

(@)

(b)

(c)

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company,
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for
long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company,
the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. The Company did not have any associate or
joint venture during the year.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries. The Company did not have any associate or joint venture during the
year.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act
for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accounting standards.
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the draft of the internal audit reports were issued after the
balance sheet date covering the period under audit.

In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c)of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Group (“Companies in the Group” as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions) does not have any CIC (Core Investment Company) as part of the
group as per the definition of Group Contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-
Section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order
is not applicable for the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(F.R.N. 117366W/W-100018)

b d

Sathya P. Koushik

(Partner)

(Membership No. 206920)
(UDIN: 24206920BKANZC1860)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 21, 2024
SPK/RK/2024
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Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970

Standalone Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets )
Non-current assets
(a) Property. plant and equipment 6 8.775.78 7.273.16
(b) Right-of-use assets 7 1.831.53 1,848.89
(c) Capital work-in-progress 6 1,068.95 1,510.00
(d) Intangible assets 8 130.20 103.82
(e) Financial assets
(1) Investments 9 802.66 802.66
(ii) Other financial assets 10 39.13 26.57
(f) Non-current tax assets (net) 1 130.83 76.63
(g) Other non-current assets 12 108.44 145.17
Total non-current assets 12,887.52 11,786.90
Current assets
(a) Inventories I3 860.72 1,381.20
(b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 14 2,587.94 2,771.53
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 15(i) 168.61 635,95
(iii) Bank balances other than (it) above 15(ii) 1.351.43 16424
(1v) Other financial assets 10 794.76 1.784.74
(c) Other current assets 12 3,748.22 2,781.66
Total current assets 9,511.68 9,519.32
Total assets 22,399.20 21,306.22
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 180.50 180.10
(b) Other equity 17 9.931.48 8,947.22
Total equity 10,111.98 9,127.32
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 8 2,772.46 2,609.69
(i1) Lease liabilities 19 1,215.49 1,366.77
(i11) Other financial liabilities 20 13.33 37.27
(b) Provisions 21 190.67 166.76
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 2 862.89 604.80
Total non-current liabilities 5,054.84 4,785.29




Sai Life Sciences Limited
CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970

Standalone Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note Asat
B 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 4,329.17 4,382.60
(ii) Lease liabilities 19 338.98 329.17
(iii) Trade payables
(A) Tptal outstanding dues of micro and smalil 23 90.07 80.90
enterprises
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than . .
micro enterprises and small enterprises 3 1.814.83 1.891.38
tiv) Other financial liabilities 20 317.53 227.79
(b) Other current liabilities 24 238.36 377.76
(c) Provisions 21 83.44 72.02
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 25 - 31.99
Total current liabilities 7,232.38 7,393.61
Total equity and liabilities 22,399.20 21,306.22

See accompanying notes 1 to 48 forming part of these Standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018

oo d—

Sathya P. Koushik
Partner
Membership No.: 206920

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21-May-2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970

4

7
K.Ranga Raju
Chairman
DIN No: 00043186

W=

i
Sivaramakrishnan Chittor

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21-May-2024

ot

Managing Director
DIN No: 00064614

Runa Karan
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A13721



Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN-U24110TG1999PLC0O30970

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year cnded 31 March 2024

(All amounts in [ndian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year cnded

Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
| Revenue from operations 26 14,186.82 1137403
il Other income 2] i 293.32 279.61
1T Total income (I+ II) 14,480.14 11.833.64
IV Expenses
Cost of material. chemicals & reagents consumed 28 4,087.83 4.131.20
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 29 238.04 (45.88)
Employee benefits expense 30 4.306.29 3.537.57
Finance costs 31 797.24 70642
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 1.072.13 877.73
Other expenses RK] 2,688,560 2.319.73
Total expenses (1V) 13.190.09 11.526.77
V  Profit before tax (I - 1V) 1,290.05 326.87
VI Taxexpense 34
(1) Current tax 79.69 107.31
(11) Deterved tax 258.05 (22.81)
Total tax expense (VI) 337.74 84.50
VII Profit after tax (V - V1) 952.31 242ﬂ
VIl Other comprehensive income
A. (i) Ttems that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss:
(a) Re-measmrement of detined benefit plans 8.08 3113
(it) Income-tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (203) (7.83)
6.05 23.30
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss:
(a) Etfective portion of gain/(loss) on designated portion of hedging (789 (11.70y
instruments in a cash tlow hedge
(b) Fxchange differences on ranslating foreign operations -
(ii) Income-tax on items that will be reclassitied 1o profit or loss 1.99 294
(5.90) (8.76)
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A + B) 0.15 14.54
Total comprehensive income for the year (VIl + VIH) 932.46 256.91
IN'  Earnings per cquity share (in absolute ¥ terms) 35
Basic §2.57 13.42
Diluted 52.07 32

See accompanying notes 1 to 48 forming part of these Standalone financial statements

In terms of our rcport attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accowuntants
Firm Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018

\I(JKLLQ,%L, :
Sathya P. Koushik

Partner
Membership No.: 206920

Place: Hyderabad
Date. 21-Nlay-2024

For and on behalf ol the Board of Directors of
Sai Life Sciences Limited
CIN No: U241 10TG1999PLC030970

4L

K.Rafiga Raju
Chairman
DIN No: 00043186

Krishnam Raju
Managing Dircctor
DIN No: 00064614

1‘

W=

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor
Chief Financial Officer

'
\
;%AMA(W,“}
una Karan
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A13721

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21-May-2024



Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,290.05 326.87
Adjustments for :
Interest income (135.97) (106.64)
(Gain)/loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment, net (0.10) 5.67
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (44.42) (30.05)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,072.13 877.73
Equity -settled share-based payments 2253 8.14
Finance costs 797.24 706.42
Bad debts written off (net of recoveries) 62.04 67.96
Advances written off 10.72 -
Provision towards advances 13.66 -
Asset written off 61.86 -
Provision towards doubtful trade receivables, net 0.66 11.52
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 3,150.40 1,867.62
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets (65.77) 424.08
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 520.48 (121.68)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 208.30 (442.68)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (977.29) 34271
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets 39.16 (12.71)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (63.07) 46.84
Decrease in other financial liabilities & provisions (26.43) “@7.11)
Increase/(decrease) in other non-current and current liabilities (139.40) 198.47
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,641.38 2,255.54
Income-taxes paid, net (134.96) (40.80)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 2,506.42 2,214.74
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets ( including capital work in progress, (1,793.60) (1,139.79)
capital advances and capital creditors)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 8.33 482.15
Investments in subsidiaries entities (148.50)
Investiments in other entity - (18.53)
Movement in other bank balances (1,187.19) (20.72)
(Investment)/Redemption of Corporate deposits 950.00 (350.00)
Interest income received 12125, 83.11
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1,900.51) (1,112.28)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 9.67 20.91
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) current borrowings, net 248.93 (664.37)
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 750.00 300.00
Repayment of non-current borrowings (667.28) (332.76)
Interest portion of lease liabilities (191.67) (177.07)
Principal portion of lease liabilities (396.22) (303.32)
Interest paid # (599.73) (543.82)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (846.30) (1,900.43)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+ B+ C) (240.39) (797.97)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 20212 1,090.09
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear (Note 1 below) 51.73 292.12




Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN-U241 10TG1999PL.CN30970

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in [ndian Rupees millions. except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the vear ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 1:
Cash and cash equivalents includes
Cash on hand 011 0.26
Balances with banks
-in current accounts 75.65 15.10
-in book overdratt in bank accounts (116.88) 1343.83)
-in cash credit accounts 92.85 320.59
-in deposits account - 300.00
51.73 292.12

# Interest paid in cash flow from financing activities includes borrowing cost capitalised as property, plant and equipment and CWIP during the year amounting
to T 18.49 (31 March 2023: ¥ 28.96)

Refer note 18 tor reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in balance sheet for financial liabilities arising from financing activities.

See accompanying notes | to 48 forming part of these Standalone financial statements

Tn terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Chartered Accountents Sai Life Sciences Limited
Firm Registration No.: 117366 W/W-100018 CIN No: U24110TG1999PLC030970
Joified— b WA .
v I
Sathya P. Koushik K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Rajn
Purtner Chaurman 4 3 Managing Director
Membership No 206920 DIN No. 00043186 (= ¢ @ \\ DIN No: 00064614
\. B
e ? K pam
e sl
Sivaramakrishnan Chittor Runa Karan
Chief Financial Oftticer Company Secretary
Membership No.: Ai3721
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: 21-May-2024 Date: 21-May-2024



fe Sciences Limited
24110TG199YPLCO30YT0

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity lor the yvear ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts 1y Indian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

A

Share Capital
Equity Preference Totu)

Number of shares Amount Number of shires Amount Amuunt
As at 31 March 2022 1,75,50,306 175.56 4,80,000 3.87 179.43
Changes i share capital during the year 60.250 .67 - - 0.67
As at 31 March 2023 1,76,22,556 176.23 4,850,000 3.87 18010
Changes in share capital during the year 40.478 €40 - . 0.40
[As al 31 March 2024 1,76,63,034 176.63 +,80.000 3.87 130.50 |
Other Exuity

Reserves and Surplus Other
Capital reserve Securities preminm Employee stock Retained earnings Effective portion of
oplions outstanding cash flow hedges Total
account

Balance as at 31 March 2022 11.22 3.455.56 87.20 4.780.21 (3.26) 873093
Amount transferred on exeraise forferture of employee stock options (0 58) 038 . .
Profit tor the year 24237 - 24237
(Other comprehensive mcome 3113 (11.70) 1943
Income-tax on items that sl not be reclassified ta profit or loss - - - (783) - (7 83)
Income-tax on items that will be reclassitied to profit or loss - - 294 294
Tutal comprehensive income - - 10.58) 266,25 18.76 256.91
Dividend putd - (69 Y)Y - (69.00)
Shares allotied during the year on account of exercise of emplovee stock - 2024 A . i ap.24
oplions b 20.2
Shaie=based pavment expense - - 814 - - 314
Balance as a1 31 Murch 2023 11.22 3,875.80 94.76 4.977.46 112.02) 8,947.22
Amount transferted vn fortertue ol empioyee stock oplions - - “4.71) 471 - -
Amaount transferred on exercise of employee stock options b64R (6.48) - -
Prolil for the yea - - = 952.31 - 03523
Other comprehensive income - - - 8.08 (7 89) 0.19
Income-tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or foss - - - (2.03) - (2.u3)
Income-tax on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - - - Ly 1.9y
Davidend paid - - - - - -
T'utal comprehensive income - 6.48 (11.19) 463.07 (5.90) 952.46
Shares allotted during the year on account of exercise of employee stock . 27 . . 97
options -
Share-based jayment expense - - 22.53 - 22.53
Balance as at 31 March 2024 11.22 1,891.55 106.10 5.940.53 117.92) 9,931.48

Sce accompanying notes | to 48 forming part of these Standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached
Far Deloitte Hasking & Sells LLP
Chartered Accommaniy
Firm Rewstration No

Jalbped—

Sathya P. Konshik
Partner
Membership No.. 206920

L17366W/W-100018

Place: Hyderabad
Date’ 21-May-2024

For and on behalt of the Board of Bicectors off

Life Sciences Limited

CIN No' U241 10TG1999P1.C0O30970

}If/
K.Rahgn Raju
Chairman
DIN Nu. 00043180

Q7=

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor

Cheel Fianeial Olfice

Place Hyderabad
Date 21-May-2024

o,

Managing Duector
DIN No: 00004614

2 v
gu”’k -
Runa Karan

Compuny Secietay
Mentbership No.. A1372)




Sai Life Sciences Limited
CIN-U24110TG1999PL.C030970
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

. Corporate information

Sai Life Sciences Limited (“the Company™) is a closely held public limited company domiciled and
incorporated in India. The registered office of the Company is situated in Hyderabad, Telangana, and has
facilities in the states of Telangana, Karnataka and Maharashtra, India.

The Company carries out contract research and manufacturing activities for customers engaged in
pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

. Statement of compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company which comprise of the Standalone Balance Sheet,
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows (“standalone financial statements™) have been
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) and other relevant proivisions of the Act, as
applicable. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

. Basis of preparation and measurement

These standalone financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of
relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Company’s annual reporting date 31 March 2024. These standalone
financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Company’s Board of Directors on 21 May 2024,

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual
basis except for the following material items in the balance sheet:

e (Certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value; and
e Share based payments, which are measured at fair value of the options.

Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (‘INR’ or ‘X’) which is also the functional
and presentation currency of the Company. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been
rounded to the nearest millions, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the standalone financial statements in the period in which such
changes are made and in any future periods affected.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that thg@fffecto\r_s have made
in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies that have the most siﬁ@‘ﬁc{m- effect-on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements. ‘
N /
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Sai Life Sciences Limited
CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

Revenue recognition

The Company applies judgement to determine whether each product or service promised to a customer are
capable of being distinct, and are distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the promised product or services
are combined and accounted as a single performance obligation. Revenue will be recognised as the customer
obtains control of the product and services promised in the Contract. Given the nature of the product and terms
and conditions in case of certain contracts, the customer obtains control as the Company performs the work
under the contract. Therefore, revenue is recognised over time for such contracts and for other contracts at a
point in time. Judgement is involved in assessing whether the contract/agreement meets the criteria for
recognition of revenue over the period on percentage of completion. Further, the Company uses the percentage
of completion method to measure progress towards completion in respect of fixed price contracts. When
estimates indicate that a loss will be incurred, the loss is provided for in the period in which the loss becomes
probable.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements
is included in the following notes:

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Items requiring | Assumption and estimation uncertainty

significant estimate B
Useful lives of | The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
property, plant and | and the intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. During the current
equipment and | year, there has been no change in life considered for the assets.
Intangible assets ]
Estimation of net | Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In estimating
realisable value of | the net realisable value of inventories the Company makes an estimate of future
inventories selling prices and costs necessary to make the sale.

At the end of each reporting year, the Company assess the potential usage of
inventories held and judgements are involved in assessing the alternate usage and
realisability of inventories.

Fair valuation | Some of the Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for
measurement and | financial reporting purposes.

valuation process

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
Finance team works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

Contract assets Contract asset is recognised when the performance obligations are fulfilled and
revenue is recognised over a period of time. Judgement-is involved in assessing
| whether the contract/agreement meets the criteria for, récogniiion of revenue over




Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

Items requiring
significant estimate

Assumption and estimation uncertainty

the period on percentage of completion. Estimates are involved in determining the
percentage of completion of the contract.

Leases

The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease
basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to
extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term,
the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and

| the importance of the underlying asset to the Company’s operations taking into

account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable
alternatives. The lease term in future years is reassessed to ensure that the lease
term reflects the current economic circumstances. The Company makes an
assessment of the buy back option while determining the useful life for amortising
the Right of use assets.

Employee benefits

The Company uses actuarial assumptions to determine the obligations for
employee benefits at each reporting date. These assumptions include the discount
rate, expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, rate of increase in
compensation levels and mortality rates.

Valuation of
investments in

The Company uses assumptions to determine the valuation of investments in
subsidiaries at each reporting date. These assumptions include the discount rate,

assumptions about the
likelihood and
magnitude of an
outflow of resources

subsidiaries long-term rate, projected cash flows ete.

Provisions, The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third
contingencies - | parties. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable
Recognition and | estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s
measurement of | assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice,
provisions and | management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by
contingencies; key | nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve

estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is disclosed in the notes
to the standalone financial statements.

Loss allowance for
trade receivables

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECL). For all other
financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition
in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

Government grants

The Group recognises government grants only when there is no uncertainty on
compliance with conditions attached and on receipt of grants.

Judgments are involved in assessing compliance with conditions and ultimate
receipt of grants.

Share based
compensation

At the end of each reporting year, the Company revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of profit and loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

Provision for taxes

Significant judgments are required in determining the provision for income and
deferred taxes, including the amount expected to be paid/ recovered for uncertain
tax positions.

-~

In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets, the Management
considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will not




Sai Life Sciences Limited
CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

Items requiring [ Assumption and estimation uncertainty

significant estimate

be realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred income tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the
temporary differences become deductible. The amount of deferred income tax
assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in the near term if
estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

Summary of material accounting policies
The standalone financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and
measurement basis summarized below.

An asset is classified as current when it is:
* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date, or
* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date

A liability is classified as current when:
* Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
¢ Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date, or
* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date

Current assets / liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets / liabilities respectively. All
other assets / liabilities including deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

b. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions or at the rate that closely approximates the rate at the date of
transactions. The date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income (part of it) is the date on which the entity initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from payment or receipt of advance consideration.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. F oreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from translation at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting
date of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the standalone
statement of profit and loss are reported as foreign exchange gains/ (losses), net. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not translated.

¢. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the transaction value of the consideration received or receivable,



Sai Life Sciences Limited
CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

Percentage of Completion. If the services rendered by the Company exceed the payment. a Contract asset
(Unbilled Revenue) is recognised. If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract liability
(Deferred Revenue and Advance from Customers) is recognised. If the contracts involve time-based
billing, revenue is recognised in the amount to which the Company has a right to invoice.

Revenue from the operations is recognised when the Company transfers Control of the product. Control
of the product transfers upon shipment of the product to the customer or when the product is made available
to the customer, provided transfer of title to the customer occurs and the Company has not retained any
significant risks of ownership or future obligations with respect to the product shipped. Amounts disclosed
as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and indirect taxes.

‘Bill and hold’ sales, in which delivery is delayed at the buyer’s request but the buyer takes title and accepts
billing, revenue is recognised when the buyer takes title, provided:

(a) it is probable that delivery will be made;

(b) the item is on hand, identified and ready for delivery to the buyer at the time the sale is recognised;
(c) the buyer specifically acknowledges the deferred delivery instructions; and

(d) the usual payment terms apply.

Revenue is not recognized when there is simply an intention to acquire or manufacture the goods in time
for delivery.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate
applicable. For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally, when shareholders approve the dividend.

Export incentives

Export incentives are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme
is established in respect of the exports made and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the
ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

d. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
Property, Plant and Equipment not ready for its intended use at the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as
“Capital Work in progress”. Such items are classified to specific sections of the Property, Plant and
equipment as and when ready for its intended use.

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of PPE.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of PPE is recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
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Depreciation

Depreciation on items of PPE is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful
lives as estimated by the management which coincides with the useful lives mentioned in Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013. Freehold land are not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are based on a technical evaluation reflecting actual usage of assets.

Asset Category Estimated useful life (in years)

Buildings 30

Leaschold improvements Over the lease period or over the useful life of
asset if the Company is certain to opt for purchase
option

Plant and equipment 3-20

Furniture 10

Freehold Vehicles 4-10

Freehold Computers 3-6

Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / up to the date on which
asset is ready for use / disposed-off.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

e. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, such intangible assets are measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it
relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is
recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss as incurred.

The intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful life of the asset, on a straight line basis.
Estimated useful economic life of Intangibles are as follows:

Asset Category Estimated useful
life (in years)
Acquired Software 1-6

f. Impairment
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. if any.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets.
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An impairment loss is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss it the estimated recoverable
amount of an asset or its cash generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. If, at the reporting date
there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount
is reassessed and reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been previously recognised.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (“ECL") model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses. For all other financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount
equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount
of the assets.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangibles assets and capital work in progress

The Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount
in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

g. Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The method of determining cost of
various categories of inventories is as follows:

(1) Raw materials — Weighted average cost. Cost includes purchase cost and other attributable
expenses
(i) Stores and spares and packing material — Weighted average cost

(iii)  Finished goods and work-in-process - is based on average cost of production or conversion which
comprises direct material costs, direct wages and applicable overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with
reference to the selling prices of related finished products.

h. Measurement of fair values
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels
in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall inte-difterent levels of
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the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

i. Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised at transaction price when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value and, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue, except trade receivables which are measured at transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

e amortised cost;

e fair value through other comprehensive income (*FVOCI”) — debt investment;
e FVOCI - equity investment; or

e FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except it and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

¢ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in Other Income in the standalone statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

FVOCI — debt investment

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated

as at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash.f 0\\5 ‘that are solely

'

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the standalone statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to standalone statement of profit and
loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR
method.

FVTOCI - Equity investment

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVTOCI — equity
investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, including foreign exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCL
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss. even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the standalone statement of
profit and loss.

FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

Financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; or the company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset but has transterred
control of the asset.

Trade Receivables which are subject to a factoring arrangement without recourse are derecognized from
the Balance sheet in its entirety. Under this arrangement, the Company transfers relevant receivables to
the factor in exchange for cash and does not retain credit risk

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference bg};y;@m-ﬂmparrying
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amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments:

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for
subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument,
and if so, the nature of the item being hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated.

The Company designates their derivatives as hedges of foreign exchange risk associated with the cash
flows of highly probable forecast transactions and variable interest rate risk associated with borrowings
(cash flow hedges).

The Company documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the economic relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items including whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset
changes in cash flows of hedged items. The group documents its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions at the inception of each hedge relationship.

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability
when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are also
classified as a current asset or liability when expected to be realised/settled within 12 months of the
balance sheet date.

(i) Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognised in the other comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve within equity,
limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item on a present value basis from the
inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the group designates only the intrinsic
value of the option contract as the hedging instrument.

Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change in intrinsic value of the option contracts are
recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of the option
contracts that relate to the hedged item (‘aligned time value') are recognised within other comprehensive
income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity.

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the group generally designates only the
change in fair value of the forward contract related to the spot component as the hedging instrument.
Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change in the spot component of the forward
contracts are recognised in other comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The
change in the forward element of the contract that relates to the hedged item (‘aligned forward element’)
is recognised within other comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within quilfﬁ’ﬁsl@me
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cases, the entity may designate the full change in fair value of the forward contract (including forward
points) as the hedging instrument. In such cases. the gains and losses relating to the effective portion of
the change in fair value of the entire forward contract are recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve
within equity.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place).

When the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example
inventory), the amounts accumulated in equity are transferred to profit or loss as follows:

e  With respect to gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the intrinsic value of option
contracts, both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the deferred aligned time value of the
option contracts are included within the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are
ultimately recognised in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example,
through cost of sales).

e With respect to gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the spot component of forward
contracts, both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the deferred aligned forward element
of the forward contract are included within the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are
ultimately recognised in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example,
through cost of sales).

e The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the interest rate swaps hedging variable rate
borrowings is recognised in profit or loss within 'finance cost'.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity at that
time remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in equity
are immediately reclassified to profit or loss within other gains/(losses). Hedge ineffectiveness is
recognised in profit and loss within other gains/(losses).

If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective
remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship will
be rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the hedging instrument or the volume of the hedged item
so that the hedge ratio aligns with the ratio used for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness
is calculated and accounted for in profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.

Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As
per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the

arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if filfilment of the
fl

l

\
\
\\

RN



Sai Life Sciences Limited
CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is. or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(it) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company uses significant
Judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. At the date of
commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“‘ROU") and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on
a straight-line basis over the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. The lease liability is initially
measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if
whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been
separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

k. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the standalone balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, debit
balance in cash credit accounts and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

l.  Government Grants
The Company recognises government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions
attached to them will be complied with, and the grants will be received. Government grants received in
relation to assets are recognised by deducting the grant from the carrying amount of the asset. Grants
related to Income are recognized in standalone statement of profit and loss as other operating revenues.

m. Investments in the nature of equity in subsidiaries
The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries at cost in the
separate financial statements in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, “Separate Financial
Statements'.

n. Borrowing costs .
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset
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which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

o. Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits from provident fund, which is a defined contribution
plan. Both the eligible employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Government
administered provident fund scheme equal to a specified percentage of the eligible employee’s salary.
Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are deposited with in a government administered
provident fund. The Company has no further obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed during
the period as the related service is provided. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-
gratia. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Long-term emplovee benefits

Employee benefits payable after twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as long-term
employee benefits. These benefits primarily include one-off retention incentive and long-term bonus
provision, in accordance with the policy of the company. The company accrues these costs based on the
expected pay out and the same is amortised over a period of services.

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (“the Gratuity Plan™) covering the eligibie
employees of the Company. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective
employee’s last drawn salary and the tenure of the employment with the Company. Liability with regard
to the Gratuity Plan is determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each
balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The defined benefit plan is administered by a
trust formed for this purpose through the Company gratuity scheme. The Company recognises the net
obligation of a defined benefit plan as a liability in its standalone balance sheet. Gains or losses through
re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability are recognized in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods. The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets,
in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation is recognised in other comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are
recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss. The net interest on net defined benefit liability
which reflects the change in net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time is considered
as employee cost and disclosed under “Employee benefits expense”.

Compensated absences

The Company’s policy permits employees to accumulate and carry forward a portion of unutilized
compensated absences and utilize them in future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof in accordance with
the terms of such policy. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by
actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet.
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Share based compensation

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made
using an appropriate valuation model. The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment
awards granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount
recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and
non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an
expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting
conditions at the vesting date.

p. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted
to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
e Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company; or

e Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually
certain, related asset is recognized.

q. Income taxes
Tax expense recognized in standalone statement of profit and loss consists of current and deferred tax
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively.

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted for the reporting period
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary ditferences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax liability are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary difterences can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Withholding tax arising out of payment of dividends
to shareholders under the Indian Income tax regulations is not considered as tax expense for the Company
and all such taxes are recognised in the statement of changes in equity as part of the associated-dividend
payment. b,
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r. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS
is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

s. Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

t. Goods and Service Tax Input credit
Goods and Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the year in which the underlying service
received is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in availing / utilising the credits.

u. Operating cycle
As mentioned in paragraph 1 above, the Company is into contract research and manufacture of
pharmaceutical products. Based on the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in
cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months. The above basis
is used for classifying the assets and liabilities into current and non-current as the case may be.
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Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024 {continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupeces millions, except share data and where otherwisc stated)

7. Right-of-use assets

R Exsehiokl Buildings Vehicles Pla-nt and Computers Tatal
land equipment

Cost ]
Balance as at 1 April 2022 148.13 1,030.95 285.21 795.26 154.55 2,414.10
Additions during the year - 10.59 67.05 463.39 14,86 557.89
Disposals/retirement - (10.92) (14.99) - - (2591)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 148.13 1,030.62 337.27 1,260.65 169.41 2,946.08
Additions during the year - 1517 93.34 194.83 064 303.98
Disposals/rctirement - - (30.92) - - (30.92)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 148.13 1,045.79 399.69 1,455.48 170.05 3,219.14
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2022 14.01 526.35 248.42 - 60.57 849.35
Charge for the vear 358 63.46 70.97 91.84 38.60 268.45
Disposals/retirement - (7.31) (13.30) - - (20.61)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 17.59 582.50 306.09 91.84 99.17 1,097.19
Charge for the vear 3.59 67.19 71.24 114.76 36.29 293.07
Disposals/retirement - - (2.65) 7 - - (2.65)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 21.18 649.69 374.68 206.60 135.46 1,387.61
Net carrying amount
As at 31 March 2023 130.54 448.12 3118 1,168.81 70.24 1,848.89
As at 31 March 2024 126.95 396.10 25.01 1,248.88 34.59 1,831.53




Sai Life Sciences Limited
CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

(All amounts in Indian Rupces millions. except share data and where otherwise stated)

8. Other intangible assets

Acquired software Total
Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at 1 April 2022 161.00 161.00
Additions during the year 78.57 78.57
Balance as at 31 March 2023 239.57 239.57
Additions during the year 110.56 110.56
Balance as at 31 March 2024 350.13 350.13
Accumulated amortization
Balance as at T April 2022 92.88 92.88
Charge for the year 42.87 42.87
Balance as at 31 March 2023 135.75 135.75
Charge for the year 84.18 84.18
Balance as at 31 March 2024 219.93 219.93
Net carrying amount
As at 31 March 2023 103.82 103.82
As at 31 March 2024 130.20 130.20




Sai

CIN-UZ4L TG (!
Notes ta the Standadone financi

ife Scicnees

I statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continoed)

(Al anounts in lndian Rupees millions, exeept sharc data and wliere olherwse slated)

9.

Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Inyestments
Noa-current
Tny estment in equity instruments
Unguoted investments (fully paid)
fuvestments m suh stdiary iar cost
Sai Life Seiences Inc, USA 060 77 606 77
184.762 (31 March 2023; 184.762) capital stock of USD | cach: fully paideup
Sui Life Pharnu Private Limited 1510 [1BR{Y
LIS.10.000 (31 March 2023, 1.15,10,000) cquits of ¥ 10 cach fully paid-up
Sui Life Druglorm Prvate Limited* 0l .10
10000 ¢31 March 2023 16.000) equity of T 10 cach fully paid-up
Less Provision lor impairment [CRDY 0 1)
Sai Life Sciences GNBH 218 2
25,000 (31 March 2023, 23 U04) equity shases ol Extco 1 cach fully paid-up -
Totul investments in subsidiaries (A) THIOE 783.9%

Others, al fuer vaine Tiroueh Other Conineiensive Ineome)

Jeedimetkx EMfluent Treament Linnted 003 0ns
300 (31 Masch 2023, 300) equity shares of 2100 cach fully paid-up

Palanchery Envirotech Limited oLl ot

10.878 (31 March 2023: 10.878) cquuty shares of 210 each fully paid-op

Clean Max Oran Power LLP 1852 1852

Contnbution of 26%a LLE Share {31 March 2023 26%a LLP Sharc) in Partners capital**

Tatal investment in uthers (at fair value threugh Other Cemprehensive Inceme) (B) 18.68

Total non-current investmenis (A) + (B) BN2.66

egate amount of quoted inyvestments and mauketyalue thereol” - -

02 56 80166

Aggregate alue of unquoted invesbinents
** Dunng the previous year ended 31 Mar 2023 the Compamy had invested ao amount of T 18.52 i Clean Max Goon Power LLP pursuant to Lunited Liability Partnership Agrecment The Company s
investment represents 26 ewnership of the Clean Max Orion Power LLP and the invastment 1s in accordanc, Electricity Act 2003 which supulales consumer partner (31 Life) (o have atleast 26%
ownership in the cleauricits generating entity The Compam 's 26% ownership is purely to meet he regulatory requirement and hence the Company has not censolidated the share of profit or loss in the financials

Other financial assets
Non-current

Denvatve fingnenal asse = Faur Vatue Throngh Ofher Comprehensn ¢ Tncome (F - 2
Sceurity deposits - considered good w11 2433
— _39.13 2657
Current
Security deposits
(aj Considered good 961 2981
(b considered doubtful %9 33
) 13.00 3520
Less Provision fov doubcrul deposits (239 (339
961 2981
Derivative financial asset = FVTOCT 16 08 1836
Unbifled rey enue® v 12742
Fixed Deposits with financial mstitutions 400 00 L350 00
Tncentn & receit able under T-MEA schemw** 22081 21867
Tierest accrued bui not due on deposits 3450 4028
794.76 1,784.74
*Classilicd as fwancial asset as nght to consideration 15 unconditianal npon passage ef tune
*+*Dunng the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company recen ed final appros al under the Telangany mdustrial Deyclopment and Advancement (T-IDEA) schemne 2014 from Commissionerate of
Indusirics. Telangzana State wowards sanction of nvestment subsidy amounung to X. 200
Additionally . under lhe ubos ¢ scheme. the Company grasted a ised incentive ol power cost el 0f 2,1 00 per wnit for a period ol 10 years staning from Augusl 2020 wbeing the conmmencement

of commarcial production of the expanded Facility 21 Shamearpet. Hyderabad, Telangana). During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024, 1he Company received sanction orders frem Cammissioner
of Industrics. Telangana seafe 1owards power cost reimburscinent amounting 10 Z.18.07 and 2.2 14 respectively refating te 1he periad August 2020 1o March 2023,

. Non-current fax assets (net)

Advance incomesiax. nct of provision tor tasation . 79.69 (31 Mar 232 107 51) 130 83 "6 6%
130.83 76463
Refer Note 34 for details of income L expense
. Other asscts
\Unsceured, considered good)
Nun-curren(
Capital adr ances 207 ol o6
Prepaid cxpenses. 984 1002
Esporn incentive receinable H1s -
Tax demand paid uuder protest 4182 4195
Balinces with statstory mthonucs. considered zond RIS
Baluces with stawtery autharitics, considered doubtiul 15.90
4744
Luss. Provision for doubtiul balances 115.90)
354
145.17




Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN-

U24110TG1999PLC030970

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

12.

by

(ii)

(i)

Other assets (continued)
Current

Advance to suppliers
(a) Considered good
tb) Considered doubttul

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances to suppliers

Prepaid expenses

Contract assets™

Balances with statutory authorities

Export incentives receivable

Incentives receivable under production linked incentive
Advance to employees .

Other receivable from related parties

*Changes in contract assets are as follows
Balance at the beginning of the year

Invoices raised that were included in the contract assets balance at the beginning of the year
Increase due to revenue recognised during the year, excluding amounts billed during the year

Balance at the end of the year

. Inventories

Raw materials and packing materials*
Work-in-progress
Stores and spares

As at
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

*Value by which inventories have been written down to net realisable value amounted to Z. Nil (31 Mar 23: Z.13.13 )
Note - The Company has written off inventories amounting to T. 292.60 (31 Mar 23 : Z.170.50 )
Refer note 5(g) for basis of valuation and for details of inventories pledged, refer note |8

Trade receivables*
(a) Constidered good

(b) Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (Refer Note 37B for the Company’s credit risk management process.)

*The Company has a factoring arrangement without recourse with one of its bankers ; consequently, the Company has d

95.12 12984
3L08 1742
126.20 147.26
BLOY) (740
95.12 12984
199,17 13487
2.968.16 165047
39763 77071
L4 ols
93.10
133 252
6 -
3,748.22 2,781.66
165047 2,101.56
(1L418.05) (LT47.15)
2.735.74 1,296.06
2,968.16 1,650.47
62547 86851
20073 43877
1452 7392
860.72 1.381.20
254794 277153
17.00 11622
270494 2,881.75
117.00 116,22
2,587.94 2,771.53

receivables ing to TNl (31 Mar 23228

receivables to the factor in exchange for cash and does not retain credit risk.

Trade receivables Aging:
As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

(i) Undi Trade receivables — good

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

Total

As at 31 March 2023
Particulars

(i) Undi d Trade tvables — idered good

(ii) Gndisputed Trade receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

Total

. Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents
Cast on hand
Balances with banks
-in cutrent accounts
-in Cash credit account
-in deposits account

Bank balances other than abave
-margin moneydeposit
-in deposits account

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

17). as it transfers relevant

Not Due Less than 6 6 months - [ year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months

1,762.24 73517 4785 42.68 - 258794

- 129 8.76 30.19 51.05 2371 117.00

1.762.24 736.46 56.61 7287 51.05 25.71 2,704.94

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
-2 v 2-3 v A ’

Not Due Less than 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months

1,860.23 777.98 85,18 4814 277153

- - 6349 2131 42 L1622

1,860.23 777.98 85.18 111.63 2131 3142 2,887.75

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of follawing:

Cash and cash equivalents (as per (i) above)
Overdralt facilities (refer note 18)

0.11 0.26
75.65 15.10
92.85 320.59

- _ 300.60
168.61 __635.95
L4143 164.24

1,210.00 -

1,351.43 164.24
163.61 63595

(116.88) (343.83)
51.73 292.12




Sciences Limited
24110TG1999PLCO30970

Notes to the Standalone tinancial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees mitlions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

16. Equity share capital
i. Authorised share capital

Equity shares of T10) cach
Optionally convertible preference shares of 210 cach
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of 210 cach

il. Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of T10 cach

iii. Partly paid up preference shares

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of ¥ 10 cach
(partly paid Z.8.06 cach)

iv. Reconciliation of number af equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year

Equity shares

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares issued during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Partly paid up preference shares
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

-

- Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

dividend as declared f;

held.
i. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares

-

The Company has two classes of preference shares viz, Compulsorily convertible preference shares(CCPS} (Rs. 3.87 million) and
shares are partly paid to the tune of 2.8.06 per share and the same will be treated as fully paid-up upon receiving the payment on fj
converted into | fully paid up equity share of Z.10 cach upon payment of uncalled portion of the said shares of 2.1
0.001 as declared from time to time on a non-curmulative basis, OCPS will be converted into equity shares of the Col

ii. Warrants convertible into equity shares

“

Based on the approval of the members taken in the Shareholders meeting dated 11 June 2019. th
L:1 ata price of Z1.910 per share. These warrants are equally vested over a period of + years eny

viii. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

31 March 2024
Number Amount Number Amount
——————tMDet____ aAmount ~~ Number = Amount

Asar Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
2.03.00,000 203.00 202.00.000 20300
600000 6.00 6.00.000 600
3.00.000 5.00 3.00.000 S.00
2,14,00,000 214.00 2.14,00,000 214.00
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
1.76.63,034 176.63 1,76.22,556 176.23
1,76,63.034 176.63 1.76,22,556 176.23
Asat Asat
310 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
480,000 387 4,80,000 RE
4.80.000 3.87 4.80,000 3.87
As at As at

31 March 2023

L,76. 176.23 1.75,56,306 175.56
40,478 0.40 66.250 0.67
1,76,63,034 176.63 1,76,22,556 176.23
Asat As at

31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
4.80,000 387 +4,80.000 .87
480,000 3.87 4.80,000 3.87
1,81,43,034 180.50 1,81 56 180.10

tom time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (
cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to
of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining a

ding on 19 October 2023,

e Company has made allotment of 50,000 Share Warrants which
These warrants are not exercised as on 31 March 2074,

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive

not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company, Voting rights
pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. On winding up

frer distribution of ail preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares

‘Optionally convertible preference shares (OC| PS8} (Rs. 4.80 million). The said
nal call for %.1,94 per share as and when made, Each CCPS and OCPS will be
94 with a premium of Z.242.60, The preference shares are entitled to receive dividend
mpany upon the Company meeting the certain performance milestones. 2

are convertible info equity share in the ratio of

Name of the equity shareholders

TPG ASIA VI SF PTELTD

Marigold Partners {represented by Kanumuri Mytreyi)
Suntlower Partners (represented by Kanumuri Ranga Raju)
Sai Quest Syn Private Limited

HBM Private Equity India

G. Subba Raju

. Details of shares held by the promoters of the Company*:

17.82.378 10.09%
[1.40,729 6.46%
10.68,748 6.05%
10,553,732 .98

9,238,730 5.31%

As at 31 March 2024

1782378
1140.729
10,68,74%
10.55,722

9.38.730

As at 31 March 2023

Name of the promoters

Number

Number % holding imber ng % Change in holding
76.20,180 43.14% 76,20,180 3. .

% _holding

% Change in holdiny

Marigold Partners (represented by Kanumuri Mytrevi)
Sunflower Partners {represented by Kanumuri Ranga Raju)
Sai Quest Syn Private Limited

G. Subba Raju

Tulip Partners (represented by Kanumuri Mytreyi)
Lily Partners (represented by Kanumuri Ranga Raju)
K Krishnam Raju

G.L.Tanuja

K Sudha

K Ranga Raju

Kanumuri Mytreyi

Continental Wines Pvt Ltd

Number % holding

10.09%

6.46%

130,121
50,000

14,000
6.000 0.03%
1.967 0.01%

*For the purpose of disclosure, definition of promoter as per the Companies Act, 2013 has been considered.

I

Name of the Preference shareholders & promoters Number % hoelding Number

Marigold Partners {represented by Kanumuti Mytreyi) 168,134 35.03% 168134 35.02%
Sunflower Partners (represented by Kanumuri Ranga Raju) 167,866 3H49% 1,67.866 3497%
Tulip Paitners (represented by Kanumuri Mytreyi) 72,058 13.01% 72058 [5.01%
Lily Partners (represented by Kanumuri Ranga Raju) 71942 141997 71,942 (499"
The rate of dividend is 0.001% p.a. on a non-cumulative basis for Comp ily Co ible Preterence Shares (CCPS) and Optionally Convertible Preference Shares {OCPS) of Rs, 10 -

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% preference shares CCPS in the Company

As at 31 March 2024

17,82.378
L1 40,729
10.68,748
9,38.730
742262
510499
2,95,000
130,121
30.000
14,000
6,000
1967

As at 31 March 2023

10.11%
6.47%
6.06%
5.33%
4219
2.90%
L.67%
0.74"%
0.287
0.08%
0.03%
0.01%

0.02%
0.01%
0.01%
0.02%
0.01"%
0.01%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

%a_holding % Change in holding

Directors of the Company approved dividend payout of not mote than Rs.100 per share on the CCPS and OCPS of Rs.10) - each in their meeting on 2()-June-2022.

Interim dividend of Rs. 34.5 Million. (Rs. 39.63 per preference share) was paid for the financial vear ended Mlarch 31, 2

30,2022,

S
[I<J
023. based on the approval of the Board of Directors in their meeting held on ¢ vgkgb;(

P 2i0x
each. The Bo;‘vx!m{ 7

1

A



Sai Life Sciences Limited
CIN-UZ41 I0TG 1999PLCO30Y70

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the ye

r ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

tAll amounts in Indian Rupees millions. cxeept share data and whers othenvise slated)

xi. Shaves reserved for issue under optioas

(4) Employee stock aption plan - 2004 (“ESOP 2004")

The Company established a plan ESOP 2004 under which 360,000 cquity shares of T10 each were carmarked
2004, These options shall vest at the end of tiree y cars from the grant date The vested options can be excicised

Employee stock option plan - 2006 (¥ ESOP 2006")

The Company esiablished a plan ESOP 2006 under which 350,000 equity shares of 210 cach were carmarked and a
thie aptions granted shall vest al the end of three years from the srant daie and 40°,

employee during his ©cm of cmployment with (he Compan

Sai Employee stock aption scheme = 200% ("SESOS 2008")

The Compam cstablished a pian SESOS approved by (he Sharcholders at the Anuual and Exteaordinan General Mectings held on 11 September
maximum mumber of employee stock optiens are restricted 0 10% of paid up share capital of the Compam . Out of which, 50%
(he balanee 0% of the options shall vcst at the end of four years from the
fienic. the compam granted additional emploves stock options approved by the Sharcholders
cnd of even vear from the geant date for a period of 3 vears, The vested options can be exercised by the eoploy ce during

Under

Munagement ESOP scheme = 2018 (“MES 2018)

The Company cstablished a plan MES 2018 approved by the Sharcholders at (he Extraordinary General Meg
is 470 of the pard up equity capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis as on the Effectve Date. The optians
\ested oplions v be exercised by the employ ce during lus term of employment with the Compin

arant date. The vested oplions can be exercised by the cmployee during

and approved by the Sharchelders at the Exirnordinane General Meeting held on 13 September
by the employec during his term of employ ment with the Company.

pproved by the Sharcholders at the Annual General Mezting ield on 1o August 2006 60° of
o of the options granted shall v est ac te end of (ive years from the grant date. The \csied options can be exercised by the

2008 and 50 March 2009 respecuvely As per the scheme,
of the eptions grined shall vest at the end of 1wo 3y cars from the grant date and
his ter ef emplosment with the Company.

al the Extracrdinary General Meeting lield on 25 July 2018 The options grated shatl s cst 20 it the

lis term of employ ment with the Company.

The Company amended the plan MES 2018 and ESOP 2008 #pprovod by the Sharcholders at the Extaordinary General Meeting held on 25 March 2022 and 9 June 20023

The tenms of the above schemes provide thal cach option entittes the halder to onc
zntircly tinehascd for ESOP 2004, GSOP 2006, SESOS 2008 MES 2018 and An:

¢) Stoek aptions acti

is us fullows:

) During the year cnded 31 March 2024, the Company had meuned stock compensation cost of €22 34 (31 March 2023: 28 14y wowawds the aboy < sclemes.

held on 25 July 2018, As per the scheme maxtmum number of shares reser ed under this scheine
ramted shall v est 20% at the end of every year from the gramt date for peniod of 3 vears. The

equily sharc of 10 cach and that the oprions can be settled only by way af 1ssue of cquity shares, The options granted arc
iended MES 2014 is lime and performance based

No. of nptinns

Under FSOP 21104 plan As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Outstandang at the beginmng af the year 2000
Granted during the y car . -
Farferted during the yzar - -
Encreised duting (e y (2.000) -
Outstanding at the end of (he scar - 2000
Weighted ascrage exercise price () 30 30
Exercisable at the and of the year - 24100
Under SESOS 2008 scheme
Outstanding at the beginuing of the year 2.19.250
Guanled during the year 148000 -
Forfeited during the year - .
Enercised during the y ear 135014y 16000y
Outstanding al the eud of Lhe year 332,236 2, 0
Weighted . crige exersise pnee (2) 98t 74 24388
Frercisable at the 2nd of the ycar 182236 1.89.00
No. vf optivns
Under MES 2018 scheme Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Outsta 386375 S50
Granted during the year - 10000
Forferted Lapsed during (he y car (1.35.319) (95375
Exercised during the year 13.464) -
Ouistanding il the end of the ycar 447302 3B0.37S
Weighted average exeraise prce (3 131018 1.304 52
Enercisable at the end of the year 197392 1.50.375
1y The lue of options is estimated at the grant date using the Black<Scholes eption pricing mnodel with the folowing As ut Asat
assumpi 3] March 2024 31 March 2023
SESOS 2008 SESOS 2008 MES 2018
Date of grant 07-Dec-23 & 19-Jun-23 & 18-July-22 &
20-Feb-24 13-Sep-23 17-Aug-22
Riskefrac inmerost rate 7210 "32% 7IK%
Espected lifc (in ycars) 5 5 s
Expected s olatil 33.00% 33.00% 16.18%
Expected dividend yicld [IRUEEES 0.00% 0108,
il During the peried of fiv e ycars immedialely preceding the balance sheet dite. ne shares hin ¢ been boughl back. 1ssued for consideration other Uxin <ash and ne bonus shares have been issued.
17. Other equity Asal As a4t
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Securittes premiuni (Note &) 89155 387580
Capital teserve (Note b) Hnn n2n
Employee stock opliens outstanding account (Notg ¢) 106.10 w76
Retaned camings (Note d) 5040 53 4077 46
Cash [ow hedge resene (Note @) 1792y 2.6y
993148 894722

Nature and purpuse of reseryes
(a) Seeurities premium

The anount received in excess of face value of the equity sharcs is recoy

shares respectivel.

(h) Capital v

erve

Capital resen ¢ penains 1o the exvess of net assets taken. aver the cost of vonsideraticn paid pursuanl te amalgamation of Ady

forfeiture of certain share warrands issued n the carlieryears. The Company uses capital reserve for transactions in accordance with the provisions of the Azt

(c) Employee stuck options outsianding aceaunt
Eamploy ee stock opions outstanding account relates to share options grinted by #he Compain 1o its employ ces under

xercise of the underly
(d) Retained earnings
Retuned suminy
(c) Cash flow bedae reserve

options

s are 1he profits that the Company s camed t

date. tess any translzrs (o general resen 2. dividends or other distributions paid 1o sharcholdars,

Cash flow hedge resen < represents effcein @ portion of cash fllow hedges taken o Other comprehensi ¢ income

antiun Pharma Privaw Limited witk: the Company in the

gmised s Secunties Premium. During the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 Mareh 2023, Uie Company 1ssucd 40,478 sind 66250 cquity

lier years and on

mploy ce share option plan. These will be transfes to Equity and Secunly premium after
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Notes (o the Standalone Minanci

statements far the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)

(All amounts in Indian Rupecs millions. cxcept share dala and where otherwise stated)

17,

i)

i)

i)

)

18.
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AN

Other cquity (cuntimued)

Asat Asal
Movement in uther eygui reh 2024 31 March 2023

Sceurities premium

Balance at the beainming of the year 387380 RX.LLETY
Add: Amount i aceount of sleues issucd 1575 20.24
Balance at the end of the year 3 MYL55 3.875.80
Capital reserve
Balance ut the beginning of the year o 122
Add: Changes during the year -
Balance at 1he cnd of the year 101.22 11.22
Employce stock options outstan
Bulance al the beginning of the vear MT6 87.20
Amount transferred on forfeiture of cmployee stock options “-n (0 58)
Amount transfcrred on excreise af employ ce stock vptions 16.48) -
Sharc-based pas ment expense 2233 814
Bukace at the end of the year 106.160 94.76
Retained carnings
Balance at the beginmny of the year 4977 4o 478021
Re-measurement of detined benefit abligation (net of tax) 60s 2330
Awount transferred on lorfeiture of cmployee stock sptions 471 038
Dividend paid . 69 00)
Profic for the year 95231 242.37
Balance at the end of the vear 4.977.46
Cash flow hedye resene
Batance at the: beginning of the year (1202) (3 26)
Effzctive portion of cash $low biedges (net of tax) (3.90) i876)
Balance ot the end of Lhe year (17.92§ {12,02)
Borrowings
Non-current
(Secared - at amortized cost)
Term loans
From banks [refer note (1) 10 iviii)} 3272604
3,272.64
Lass Current maturitics of long-tenn foans 562 93
277246 2.609.69

Terms and conditions of loans and nature of sceurity

Term loan amounting te T 894 99 (31 March 2023 3994 63
quitable morigage of the praperhies of the Company and pari
sund 15 repayable in unequal quarterly instalmenl commanctng Lrom June 2023 with

seaured by wiy of pan passu first charge oo all property plant and equipment inctuding atlier intangtble asscts hoth present and funire inchiding
second charge on all net corent asscls boih preseat ind fure of the Company. ‘L his loan carmics intersst mic af' 6 months MCLIR +0.55%
31 instalment falling duc in March 2030

Commeon Covid Emergency Credit Line (CCECL) amoumung to X 93.69 (51 March 2023: 7 140.07) 15 secured by winv of pan passu second clirge an atl propam . plant and cquipment ineluding, ather
imangible assets both present and Nuure including equitable mortgage of the propestics of the Company and pari passu second charge on alf current asscts both present and future of the Compam . This foan
zarmies interest rate equal to  months MCLR per aunum =+ %o with monthly rests and ws repay able in cqual Vionthly insialments commencing from April 3022 and (lic Last cepavment falling duc in April 2026

Tenn loan amounting to ¥ Nil {3t March 2023 T 97281 is securad by way of pan pass first charge on Wl property. plan and cquipiment incleding other inangible assets bot present and (ure including
squitable mongage of the propertics of the Compam and pun passu second charge o all current assats both present and future of the Compar . This loan carrics itzrest rate of | vear MCLR + 2,75 %5 Spread
per annuum and 15 repasable in uncqual quanedy instalment comnencing (rom September 2017 with ast mstalmen falling due in Maech 2024

Term loans (USD denominated amounting ta  18.67 (31 March 2023 336 53 15 secured by way of pari passu first charge on alt property. plant and cquipment mcluding other mtangible assets both present
and future icluding cquitable morng of' the propentics of the Company and pan passu sczond charge on all carrent assets both present and futre of the Compans  Titesz loans carry interest rate of Scoured
evernight financing rate (SOFR)y )+ 275 bps ( pa. on the ing 175D niotional. monthly and are repayable in unequal quarterty instalments commiencing from July 2017
with the last iostalncnt falling duc in March 2023

Term loan amounting 10 TX 35 (31 Murch 2023 T 17.08) is secured by way of pan passu first chaige an abl property. plant and equipment including ocher intangible assets both presem und fuare mcluding
quitabls mortgage of the properties of the Company aad pari passu sezond charge on all current assats both present and future of the Company. This toan carried interest rate of MCLR OD 1 ¥zar + 11 13% per
anmum and was repayable in uncqual quarterly instalments commencing from Deceinber 2017 and che last repayment falling duc in March 2075

Term loan amounting (o  $62.50 (31 March 2023, T 637 501 is secured by wis of pari passu first charge ou all propers . plant and equipuent including other intangible assets both present and futue including
2quitable morigage of the propen Fthe Company and pan passu seeond charge U1 earrent ussets both present and fowe of the Compan This loun carmes interest tale of =.5% Fuancial Benehmarks.
Indiin Privae Linuted (FBIL) Overight Mumbai Bitetbank Outright Rage (O/N MIBOR) (uot compounded) + 303 bps (nol compounded) on the outstding INR Nolional amount. meattily sand was repm able in
wnequal quancrhy instain from March 2022 und the last repaynwent Calling due in December 2028

‘erm loan (USD deneminated) amounting 10 3 Nib (31 March 20123 X 52,19 is sccured by way of pari passu first charge on all property. plant and equipment including other ttangible assats both present and
futnre including equitable mortage of the propertics of Uie Company and pari pssu sccond charge on all cuerent asscis both present and future of the Company. This loan carned interest mtc of USD3M
LIBOR + 3.25% p.a and is repayable in quarterly instalinents commencing from November 2619 with the last instalment falling in Augus 2023

Term loau amownting 1o ¥ 613,13 (31 March 2022: T 707 82) is secured by way of pari passu first chasge on all property. plant and equipment including vther intangible assets both present and future
inctuding equitable mortgage of the properucs of the Compaiy and part passu second charge on all current assels both preseut and fature of the Company . This loan carried interest rate of 3 Months MCLR +
0.15% per anoum and was iepay able in unequal quartely instalients commzncing fiom Noyember 20022 and the Tast repayment falling due in August 2027

Tuerm loan te T 28125 (31 March 2023; ¥ 393,75} is sccwed by way of pari passu first charge ou all propenty. plant and squipment inclnding other intzmgible assets both presear and futwre including equitable
morgage of the properties of the Campainy and puri passu secoud charge on all current assets both present and futre of the Company This loan carried | vear MCLR + Spread of 105% p.a aud was repayable
in unequal quarterly mstalments commencmg from July 2021 and the Lt ey g duc in April 2026

Working capital Tean loan facihly under ¥ Credit Lme ing to T 6699 (31 March 2023 T 101.94) 15 scenred by way of pan passu sccond charue en all property, plant and
cquipment inclading otbier sngible asscts both present and futiee inchiding cyuitable mortgage of the propertivs of the Compan; i on all current assats both present s fubwe of
the Company This toan carmics witerest rate of i T-iH Rate + 3.6% Spread p.a and was repavable i equal Montbly instalments commenging from March 2021 and the last iepavment falling due in March
2020

Working capital Teun lonn facility under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line amounting 1o T 67 62 (31 March 2023: 393.13) is secured by way of pari passu First Charge on all praperty . plant and equipiment
including other intangible assets both present and future including cguitable mortgage of 1he prope: of the Company and pari passu sccond charze on all current assets both present and [uture of the
Compans. This loan carries interest e of 1Y MCLR+0.15% which ever is lower and was repayable in equit Monthiy mstalmenls commencing from April 2022 and (he Inst repay ment falling due in March
2026,

“Term loan amonny ta 2 4499 3015 sceured by way of pan passifirst Sharge on all praperty plant and equpment meluding ather itangble assets both present and [utre iclnding 2quitible mongage of the
properiics of the Company and pan passu second clarge on all current assels both present snd futiire of the Company . “Ulus laan cartiod 3m T=bill Rate 1 | 40% spread and was repayable n equal quancrly
sustalments commencing from Scpt 2025 and the last repayiment (alling due in June 2630

it and futwre including 2quitable mortyage of the

Temnt toan amounting 10 % 249 70 is secuied by way of pari passit first charge on all property . plant and cquiptent including ather intangible assets both pres
propeitics of the Company aund pari passu sevand charge on all cuneat assets both present aud futws of the Company. This loan carried Repo + Spread of 1.85% pa and was repayable in qual quastely

instalments conmencing frem Junc 2025 and tire last repayment falling due in AMarch 2030

The Company has used the borrawmgs for the purposes for witich 1t ws L
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Nates ta the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Al anounts in Indian Rupees millions. except shase data and where othenwise staled)

18, Barrowings (continued)

Short term borrowings

(Secured - at amortized cost)

Working capitl loans from banks™

Current maiunties of long-term loans

Working capital loars repayable on demand - Busers credit Facility

4+ Tncludes overdrafl facilies classified s cush & cash equivalents for the purpose of cush Mow statement refer note 13¢iin

Note: The abave horrawings are sccured by way of hypethecation of the Compamy's gaads. hook debis, movables and ather assefs Tnteres! rate ranges between 7 3% to Y o p

an annual basis.

The guarterly relums of current assats filed by the Company with banks are 1 agreement ‘with books of accounts.

Asat
31 Murch 2024

As
31 March 2023

243696
58013
306 08

432917

(116 88)

2 and the leans are revalving i

Recongiliati he openine and closiny balances in balance sheet for financinl habi! arising from financing actis ities are given below:
" Asat Net Pracecds! Asat
Particul. ‘Non cash changes®
avtienlars 31 March2023  (Repayments) ne ¢ 31 March 2024
Non=curreni bomrowings ((nctnding cnent mamntics) 3217204 X272 323 3358 59
Current berrawings (exchuding overdsaft faciliues) (refer note above) 337582 2480 T 3,626 16
Total 6.648.46 331.65 4.64 6984.75
ou cash changes includes forsign axzhange changes of T3.44
Asat Net Praceeds/ Asat

Particulars

Non cash changes*

31 March 2022 (Repayments) 31 March 2023
Non~current borrowings (including curent maturilics) 347259 3281 327264
Current horrowmys (exeludine overdralt ) (refer nole ahove) — 4.038 96 123 == 33738
751155 34404 6.048.46
19, Lease liabilities *
Non-current 121542 1366 77
Current 358,98
157447
*Refer note +4
20. Other financial liabil
Non-current
Optionally comznible preference shares (OCPS) pursuant to Schiems of Arrangement sreler nole 160y 480 480
Dervative liabilities - FVTOCT [R5 3247
13.33 37.27
Current
Interest acarued bul ol dug on borTowings 16 58 1377
Capital creditars (reler note (b) below) 27381 1402
Dervative habilities - FYTOCT SEbt -
317.53 22779

e

) Details of sharcholdzrs holding more than 3%« Opuionally somvariible preferenze shares (OCPS)

As at 31 Mareh 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Name of the Preference shareholders & promoters Number % holdinz Numbher % holding % Chanae in hnldinz
Mangold Pariners (represenicd by Kamamari Mytrey) 2.10.168 E0Ve 210168 13.03% 0.00%
Sunflower Parinrs (represented by Kanunuri Ranga Rajui 109832 R 209832 XTI
Tulip Pariners irepreserued by Kanu ari Matieyi) 90072 15 01% JONT2 000"
Lils Partuers {ropresented by Kanunuri Ratiga Raju) £9.028 1409% 20,028 n.O0%h
by Capital creditors include fing dues of micro iscs and swall (0 the extent of 261,16 131 March 2023: 2 30.3) ireler noie +)
21. Provisions Asat Asat
31 Mareh 2024 31 March2023
Nun-current
Gratuily 13937 12312
Compensated abscnces 5130 4304
190.67 166.76
Current
Gratuity 4302 3881
Compensated absences 4042 3321
83,44 72.02

Empluyee henefits
The Company has (he following post -cinployment benefils plans:

a) Defincd contribution plan
The followng amount has heen recognised as an expense in starement of prefit and loss
respective authonties

Contribution to provdent fund
Contnbuien 10 emplayees stale Insurnee schemes

(b Gratuity

count of provident fund ind other (unds. There are no other’

other than the

Ba 23
o
B6.42

mnyable to (he

The Company provides 11s cmployecs with benetits uuder a defined beneht plan. referred 1o as (lie “Gratuity Plan®. The Grawity Plan entilles an cemployee, whe has rendered at least five years ol contnuous
Service. 10 recens 13 day's last drawn sulany far cach year of completed servics (service of six months and above 1s roundzd off as onc ycar) al Lhe tme of reiemant/exit death disablement. restncled fo a sum of

2 2.00 n aceordimee with Payment of Graluigy Act. 1972 This defined benefit plan exposes the company (0 a,

rinl risk such s longen ity mieres rale rish and markel sk & mfanon nsk
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Nates to the Standalnne financial stasements for the year endedl 31 March 2024 (continued)
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21, Pruvision for employee benefits (co inued)

(1 Change in defined henefit abligation

Defined benefit abligation at the beginni

Currenl sen ice cost

Tnterest cost

Letrariat ‘gains loss an obligation
Loss [rom change m demogrphic ASSINptions
Lossygam) from change in financial assumptions
Loss/ugaimy vnaceount of experience adjustments

Benalits paid

Transterred Tn/ (Out) Liabitity

Defined henefit ubligation at the end of the year

of the year

tiili Expense recognised in the statcment of profit and loss

Inchrded under employee henefits
Toterest cost

Senvice cost
Net gratuicy costs

(v Expense recognised in other comprehensin
Reeognised et actuarial loss (gaing

&) Key uctuarial assumptions
Discount rate
Salury escalation rate
Expecied av crage remaini
Munality

Attrition rat:
Retiremizny auemy ears

The significant acwarkal asswnptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are the disconnt rate and salary eszalalion ran

assumptions. However. Lhe impact of these changes is not ascertained (0 bs material by the nesnageuent,

{vi2 Sensitivity an:

Reasonably possible changes ot the reporting date o one of the relcn. ant actuanal assuinptions. helding other

As at
31 March 2034

lol 92 169 10

3943 4122

1095 732

- 40

(4 6%) (L1935

24 (47
(18 73 (26 58)

(RN §)) -
182.38 161.93
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

.95 932

3943 4122

50.38 50.54

(8.08) (3113

= (8.081 (31.13)
0% X,

809 90007,

00 309

TALM 201 2-14) TALM (2i1 2-14)
Uttimare Ulrimate

24.00% 24009

o 58 Sy

1. The calcwlation of the et defined benefit liability 15 sensitive to thase

assuniptions constant. would fun ¢ resulted m the benefit obhgation being s follows:

arch 2023

Purticulars [ As ut 31 March 2034 ] As at 31N

I Increase in rate| Increase in rate, Decrease in rate
Discount ute (+ = 1% movamenty 176,37 I 156 36 15772
Salary esealatien rate (+ ‘- §% moy ement 18739 Lo6.4y. 7

nnty jirelile of the defined benefit ebligalion

Evpected cash fows uver the aew SR 31 March2024] 31 March 2023
4302 3831
114033 97 30
al 0247 355

5
The weighted average durstion of the defined benefis obligation as at 31 March 2024 is 278

Tie Comipany provides for = abscnces 2 s cmployees The emplos
year ended 1 Narch 2024 the Compuny has incurred an expense on compensated absences amonnting 10 2 31 46 (31 March 2023

basis the actuanat valuation of the present valuz of the oblrgation. using the Projecied Gnit Credst Method.

years tAs ai 11 March 2023 279 vears and 31 March 2022 3 5[

ean zamy ~forward a portien of (he unitilised accrucd compensated sbsences and s i i fus

yaars)

3ILNT). The Compnny determines thie expense

service years Dury
for compensared abs:

22, Deferred fax ics (net) As at
31 March 2023
Deferred tax liabilities {assety) arising un aceount of :
Pplant and cquipment 59150 53785
ssels 3242 14599
Leasz habiliucs 306.13) 4100y
ROU assets 4ol 11 4030
Ofber non-current asscets  financial liabihties - w3
Provision for employ ec benclits (8 9 {60 10y
Provision for trade receivables and adh ances 41 03) 3325y
Denvative mstruments - FVTOCH (5.03) 19.38)
Deferred tax liabil (met) $62.89 604.80
Moserment in deferred tax assets/deferred tax libilities
LApril 2022 Recognized in Recognized 31 March 2023
statement of profie in OCl
and losy .
Deferred tax 1i; fes arising on account of @
Propens. plant and cquipment 9126 1659 - 51785
Contract assets 2le3 GO 14 - 143599
ROU assets 9383 s 40300
Other nonecurrent ssses  tmancil lubrlmies 932 ® o - W3
Deferred tax assets arising om account of 3
Lease habilitics 379 4%) - (441 00)
Provision for cmplus ce beneits 162.3500 7R3 (ol {0)
Provision for tradc reccivables and ady ances 30.30) - (33 25)
Dernative wnstruments - EVTOCH (6.4 (2.94) 938)
622.73 4.89 604,80
s >
A
7 —
/] -~ \.
| /

I“k\ \
‘\:\_ﬂ >
\‘l::'j B 2
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Notes ta the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Al wnounts in Indian Rupees millions. except share data sud whers olherwise stated)

22. Deferred tax liabilitics (net) Continued

1 April 2023 Recugnized in Recognized 31 March 2024
statement of prufie in 0C1
and loss
Deferred tax liabilitics arising on account of :
Prapeny. plant and equipment 53783 - 391350
Contract assets 14399 = 32042
ROU asscls 463.00 Jo1 11
Other non-current a; nancial labilities 31 031 - -
Deferred tax asscts arising on aceyunt of :
Lease lutulities HLom 4452 - t396,18)
Provision for umplos ec benelits 0.1 {1083y 203 (0% 90)
Provision Ior trade reccivabies and ady ances i32.23) i778) - (41.03)
Dervatis ¢ instraments - FVTOCT (938 634 1199 (5.03)
604.80 25805 0.04 86289
23. Trade payables Axat As at
31 March 2u24 31 March 2023
Cousidered good.
{A) Total ling ducs of micro el and small (rafer naie 43) %007 8090
+B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other (han micro enterprises and small eiterpriscs™® 1814,

LY04.90

* Includces amount payablc to related partics - (refer note 39}
As at31 March 2024

Particulars Outstanding for follow ing periods from due date of Payment

Notdue  Less than | year 142 years 2-3years  More than 3 Total
i1 MSME 7498 809 700 - - 9007
tiiy (hers 128439 RRLRE] 984 9061 030 Le323g
1. Unbilled Ducs 18149 - = . - L 2T
Total 1.541.86 336.27 $.63 0.30 1L.904.90
As at 31 March 2023

Ouistanding fur following perivds from due date of payment
Particulars Notdue  Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years  Morethan 3 years Total
). MSME 50 75 .39 583 - - 8090
{ii) Others 105450 71586 76 306 - 1.785.78
(v Cnbrlicd Dues - - - - L03.60
Total 734.16 13.61 3.66 - 1,972.28
24, Other lial Asat Asat

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Current
Advance from customers "6 67T 278K
Payable o statutory authorilics 14169 104,88
238.36 377,76
25. Current tax lial {net}
Provisian for income tax. nel of advanes L 2. Nil 3 Mar23 27330 - 3199
= 31.99
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(Alt amounts in Indian Rupees millions, excepl share dala and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
26. Revenue from operations

Revenue from contract research. development and manufacturing activities 1422227 11,372.13
Other operating income
Income from export incentives (RODTEP) 145 -
Income under production Iinked incentive* 3 (36.90) 201.90

— 14,186.82 11,574.03

-

The Company's application for a PLI incentive of ¥ 201.90 during the financial year 2022-23 got approved in the current vear. The DOP issued a revision
restricting the outlay in year 1 to extent of 33% of the overall scheme amount of ¥ 500.00 i.c. T 165.00 and accordingly, the Company has reversed production

linked incentive of  36.90.

Disaggregation of revenue from contract research, development and manufacturing activities :

Particulars
Contract Development and Manufacturing 9,715.33 7.298.30
Contract Rescarch 4.506.74 4,073.83
Total 14,222.27 11,372.13
Reconciliation of Revenue from operations with contract price (excluding Other Operating Income) :
Particulars
Contract price 14244 35 11,372 13
Less : adjustment made to contract price on account of
Sales return (22.08) -
Total 14,222.27 11,372.13
Disaggregation of revenue from contract research, development and manufacturing activities into over time and at a point in time :
Timing of recognition
At a point 1n time 5,152.21 3,239.19
Over time 9,070.06 6,132.94
Total 14,222.27 11,372.13
27.  Other income
Interest income from deposits 135,14 94.17
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost 0.83 a77
Foreign exchange gain (net) 150.84 172.97
Interest on income tax refund - 11.70
Profit on Sale of Property, plant and equipment 010 -
Others 641 -
293.32 279.61
28.  Cost of material, chemicals & r gents d
Raw material and packing material at the beginning of the year 86851 753.60
Add: Purchases/adjustments 3.844.79 4246 11
Less: Raw material and packing material at the end of the year (625.47) (868.51)
B 4,087.83 4,131.20
29.  Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening balance
- Work-in-progress 438.77 392.89
(A) 438.77 392.89
Closing balance
- Work-in-progress 200.73 438.77
(B) 200.73 438.77
(A) -(B) 238.04 (45.88)




Sai Life Scienees Limited
CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
{All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, excepl share data and where otherwise stated)

30.  Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus (refer note (a) below)
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense
Equity settled share based payment expense
Staft wellare expenses

(a) Includcs contract labour charges of 2 321.53 (31 March 2023 2 274.46)

31. Finance costs
Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (net of borrowing
cost of T 18.49 (31 March 2023 : ¥ 28.96) capitalised to propertv. plant and
equipment)
Interest on lease liabilitics
Interest on MSME payables
Interest - others
Other - Borrowings cost

32.  Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (refer note 6)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 7)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 8)

33.  Other expenses
Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel
Rent
Repairs and maintenance:
- Buildings
- Plant and equipment
= Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Qutside contract cost
Carriage and freight outwards
Communication expenses
Oftice maintenance and housekeeping expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional tees (refer note (1) below)
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditure (refer note (ii) below)
Provision lowards doubt(ul trade receivables (refer note 378y
Bad debts written off (net of recoverics) (refer note 37B)
Provision towards doubtful advances
Advances written off
Bank charges
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Sales promotion expenses
Membership and subscription
Printing and stationery
Assct under CWIP written off
Miscellaneous expenses

(i) Details of Auditor's remuneration :
As auditor:
- Audit fee
- Certification fces
- Reimbursement of expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

3,956 83 3,246 37
86.42 74.99
50.38 50.54
2253 314

190.13 157.53
4,306.29 3,537.57
600.85 478.53
19167 17707
3.03 1.57
1.69 4925
797.24 706.42
694.88 566 41
293.07 268.45
84.18 42.87
1,072.13 $77.73
44029 382,62
494,91 437.26
275 5089
18.85 36.71
178.56 17232
165.35 214.31
70.92 68.78
2426 3672
56.86 39.27
5112 7444
19.06 1126
4132 4379
89.91 78.72
717.38 440.58
938 17.45
0.66 11.52
62.04 67.96
13.66 .
10.72 =
1426 37.36
- 5.67
3045 114
92,92 66.98
18.62 1370
61.86 =
225 0.28
2,688.56 2,319.73
577 525
1.59 457
0.49 0.29
7.85 10.11




Sai Life Sciences Limited
CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

33.

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Other expenses (continued)

(ii) Details of CSR expenditure :

34.

35,

As required under Section 135 of the Companics Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committec has been formed by the Company. During the
vear. the Company was required to spend 2 9.38 (March 2023 - T 17.45). The Company has spent the CSR amount towards

1. Contributing through Technology

2. Conducting free medical program in rural areas and sponsorship for cancer child patient

3. Promoting education in rural arcas and carcer development programme

+. Providing water storage.

Amount spent during the year on:
i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 938 17.45
i) Amount spent during the year on the above 9.38 17.45
iti) Shortfall at the end of the year - -
iv) Total of previous year shortfall - -

v) Reason for shortfall N/A N/A
vi) Nature of activity See note above Sce note above
Income tax
Tax expense comprises of:
Current tax 79.69 107.31
Deferred tax 238.05 (22.81)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 337.74 84.50

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section | 15BAA of the Income tax Act, 1961 as introduced by
the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance. 2019,

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic etfective tax rate of the Company at 25.17%
and the reported tax expense in the statement of profit and loss is as follows:

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate

Profit before tax 1.290.05 326.87
Tax at the Indian tax rate (25.17%) {31 March 2023: 25.17%) 324.68 82.27
Effect of concessions (80JJAA) (5.44) (3 94)
Disallowance of CSR expenditure 2.36 4.39
Others 16.14 1.78
Income tax expense 337.74 84.50

Earnings per equity share [EPES]
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 95231 242.37
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear * 1,81,15,947 1.80.58,176

Effect of dilution:
Employee stock options 1,73375 1,82311
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 1,82,89,322 1.82.40.487

Earnings per equity share (in absolute terms) :

Basic 5257 13.42
Diluted 52.07 13.29
Nominal Value per share cquity sharc 0 10

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the Company has not considered the Share warrants of 50,000 and 37,500 respectively which are
convertible into equity shares being anti-dilutive
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Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN-U24110TG1999rLCO30970

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(All ameunts in Tndian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

39. Related party disclosures

{2) Names of the related parties and nature of r

Namies of related parties

Narure of relationship

TPG Asia V1T ST Pte Ltd

Sai Life Sciences Tnc, USA

Sai Life Sciences GMRH. Germany
Sai Lite Pharma Private Limited
Sai Quest Syn Private Limited

Entities in which KMP have control or have si

Dr K Ranga Raju
Krishnam Raju
Sivaramakrishnan Chittor
Runa Karan

Cntity having significant influence on the Company
Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Cempany
Subsidiary Company

nificant influence

Key management personnel ("KMP")

Dr Raju A Penmasta
Puneet Bhatia
Mitesh Daga

Director

Rajagopal § Tarta
Manjusha Ambadas Joshi (w ¢ f 00 Junc 2023)
Ganesh Ramesh Iver (w.e.f. 21 May 2024)

Tndependent Director

Note : Sai Life Drugform Private Limited-subsidiary company, applied for strike off effecuve dt. 23 March 2022 & approved by MCA as on 20 Apnil 2023

(b) Transactions with related parties

Tr ions with subsidiary i
Marketing cross charge

- Sai Lilt Sciences Inc.

- Sai Lile Sciences GNBH

Research Services Provided
- Sai Life Sciences Inc

Investment in equity share capital
- Sai Life Sciences Tnc

Issue of Standby Line of Credit
- Given to vendor on behalf of Sai Life Sciences Inc

Trausactions with Subsidiaries

- Sai Life Pharma Private Limited {Rent expenses)

- Sai Life Pharma Private Limited (FTE cross charge)

- Sai Life Sciences Tnc (Purchases of L.ab consumables)

- Sai 1.ife Sciences Tnc (Service fec incurred for procurement of lab consumables)

Transzctions with independent directars
Commission

Sitting fees

Reimbursement of expenses.

‘I'ransactions with KMP
Managerial remuneration®

{c) Balances outstanding

Payables

Subsidiary company

- Sai Life Sciences Inc

- Sai Life Pharma Private Limited

Reccivahies

Subsidiary companies

- Sai Life Sciences Inc

- Sai Life Sciences GMBH

Advances Given
Subsidiary companies
- Sai Laf
- Sai Life Sciences GMBIT
- Sai Iife Pharma Private Timited

Tnvestment in equity share capital
- Sai Life Sciences Inc

- Sai Life Sciences GNBH

- Sai Lite Pharma Private Limited

Issue of Standby Line of Credit
- Given to vendor on behalf of Sai Life Sciences Inc

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

405.73
37092
3481

26.83
2083

5.39
445
03]
0.63

94.81
V481

As at
31 March 2024

38.9
2}
[

[
L
D

0

179.64
167.88
11.76

3621

as at

333.61
30231
3130

s492
5492

148.50
148 50

35.68

35.08

93.7%9
135

Q244

6.42

§9.25
#4925

31 March 2023

7391
7391

4531
+4.28
0.79
024

784.08
600.77
211
i1

3368




Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970

Noutes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(All ameunts in Tndian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

39. Related party disclosures (continued)
¥YKMP are covered by the Company's mediclaim insurance policy and are eligible for gratuity and leave encashment along with other employees of the Company. The proportionate
premium paid towards this policy and provision made for gratuily and leave encashment pertaining to the KMP has not been included in the atorementioned disclosures as these are
not determined on an individual basis

Share based campensation expense allocable to key management personnel is T 045 (31 March 2023 : ¥ 2.37), which is not included in the remuneration disclosed above,

(d) Transaction with related partics
In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Company is required to use certain specified methods in assessing that the transactions with the related
parties, are carried al an aint's length price and is also required to maintain prescribed information and documents Lo support such assessment. The appropriate method to be adopted
will depend on the nature of transactions / class of transactions, class of associated persons, functions perfarmed and other factors as prescribed Based on certain internal analysis
carried out, management believes that transactions entered into with the related parties were carried out at arms length prices. The Company is in the process of updating the transter
pricing documentation for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 In opinion of the management, the same would not have an impact on these {inancial statements.

E]

Segment repurting

The management has assessed the identification of reportable segments in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 *Operating Segment’and believes that the Company has
only one reportable segment namely “Contract rescarch and manufacturing” Geography-wise details of the Company’s revenues from external customers and its non-current assets
(other than financial insl s, iny d for using the equity method, deferred tax assets and post-employment henetit assets) and revenue from major customers are
given below:

Fﬁo;- the year ended

(i) Revenue from External customers 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
[ndia 30821 20757
Outside India 13.921 06 i1.104 50

(ii) Non-Current Assets (Other than financial instruments)
India 11,026.28 991163
Qutside India 1,019.45 1.040.04

) Major Customer
During the vear, the Company does nat have any customer who contributed more than 10%e of the Company's total revenue (31 March 2023 % 1.260.28)

41. Contingent liabilities and commitments

As at
31 March 2024 3t March 2023

(a) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net 491.15 410.82
ol advances)

(b) Contingent liabil
a. Claims arising from disputes not acknowledged as debts in respect of:

Lixcise duty liabilities - refer note (c) (i) below 7.25 725
Service tax liabilities - refer note {c) (i) below 1256 1236
Provident Fund Damages relating to PF contribution of international workers - refer note (c) (iii ) 21.89 2189
below

Income tax liabilitics - refer note (¢) (iv) & {(x) below 18.27

VAT liabilities - refer note (<) (v) below 07.56 5925
GST liabilities - refer note (c) (vi) and (vii) below 7731 4.22
b Tssue of Standby Line of Credil to vendor on behalf of Subsidiary 36.20 3568

{c) (i) The Central xcise department has raised a demnand against the Company on the ground that the Company has not complied with the conditions of Notification No 23 2003 — CE
dated 31 March 2003 As per the said notification, an Fxport Oriented Unit (FOU) unit can clear the goods into Domestic Tariff Arca (DTA) on payment of excise duty at a
concessional rate upto 30% of the Free on Board (FOB) value of the exports on the sale of similar goads to DTA. The central excise officer has held that the goods sold in DTA are
dilterent lram the goods which are exported. Accordingly raised the above demand along wilh interest and penalty. Appeal is tiled belore Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal { CESTAT') and waiting for personal hearing

(ii) The Service tax department has raised a demand on the ground that that the Place of Pravision ot Service is in [ndia and as such there is no export of service by the Campany
applying Rule 4 of Place of Provision of Service Rules, 2012, (POPS Rules) with respect to Diug Metabolism and Pharmacokinetic (DMPK) services rendered by the Company.
Appeal filed before CESTAT-Pune, on 27 April 15 and Final Order received. Appeal is tiled before Hanourable High Court on 9 Dec |9 and Personal Hearing 1s attended on 27 Feb
20. Appeal has been admitted by Hight court on Sth July 2022

{iii) The Company had three Non resident [ndians on its rolls covered under the definiton of International Workers as per the Employees™ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952 Based on the Government Order. in June 201 7. the Company suc mote made a payment of provident fund along with the applicable interest rates

However. on April 23, 2018, the Company received a notice from the Department stating that from the period 0! April 1996 to 31 March 2018, the Company had delays in deposit of
Pravident fund amount and accordingly. charged interest and damages under Section 14B and Section 70 of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act. 1932
ta the extent of T.13.15 and Z.21.89 for interest and damages respectively

The Company has represented the case stating that interest payments were made appropriately The PF autherities took the such interest payment on recerd and gave a corrigendum
stating the same

The Company is still contesting the damages payment of  21.89. The Company addressed a letter dated October 22, 2020 to the Regional Provident [und Commissioner, requesting it
to refrain from taking any such cocrcive action against the Company and reserved its right to exercise its rights and remedics under law However, since no presiding officer had been
appuinted for kearing matters betore the Central Government Industrial Tribunal (*CGIT™) at that time, the Company filed the present writ petition bearing Wit Petition No. 19867 of’
2020 against the RPFC for the setting aside of the Impugned Order as being arbitrary, illegal and violative of Article 14 of the Constitution of India. 'he matter was listed on November
19 2020, wherein, the High Court passed an interim order granting a stay on the Impugned Order However, as on date. there is no further order with regard to the said damages Apart
from the praceedings before the High Court of Telangana, an appeal was also filed by the Company challenging the Impugned Order before the CGIT under Section 7-! of the EPF Act.
The matter was listed for admission en April 26, 2021, The CGIT. vide, an order passed on April 26, 2021, cbserved that the present appeal was adnutted subject to the final order
passed by the High Court of Telangana. The said order held that the application for stay as filed by the Client would be considered upon obtaimng such a final order

(iv) During the previous years the Company has received a demand from income tax authorities relating to financial vear 201516, 2016-17 & 2017-18 regarding certain disaliowances
in the income tax remurn of that vear. The Company has filed an appeal and is pending hearing. In the current year. the Company has received favorabie order for the financial year
2015-§6 and 2017-18.



Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN-U241 IOTG1999PLC030970

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(All amounts in Tndian Rupees miilions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

41. Canti liabilities and i (

43,

(v) The Company has titigations under Maharashtra Value Added Tax (MVAT') Act. 2002 and Central Sales Tax ('CST') Act. 1936 for the years 2009-1€ to 2016-17, and for the
quarter 1 April 2017 to 30 fune 2017 For the years 2009-10 t¢ 2013-14. the Company is in appeal before the Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal and for the years 2014-13 to 30 June
2017, the Company is in appeal betore the Joint Commissioner (Appeals) The issue pertains to eligibility of refund of Input Tax Credit ('ITC) under MVAT Act.

The tax authorities have raised objection that transfer of deliverables {technical know=how) to the Customer of the Company is a service and not sale of goods Therefore, the tax
authorities at Lhe first level have disaltowed TTC and rejected the claim of refund of unutitised TTC of the Company. However, in (his regard, the Company believes thal transfer of’
deliverables to the Customer is sale of goods and the Company is eligible for ITC and the refund of unutilized ITC.

{v1) The Company has 1eceived order from the ofTicer where he has disallowed the transitional ITC and levied interesl and penalty total amounting w 24,22 Appeal is filed before
Deputy Commissioner of State Tax. Office of the Deputy Commissioner of State Tax, Pune in the year ending March 2023 The Company is waiting for personal hearing.

(vil) During the current year, the Company has reccived order from the GST Enforcement Autheritics, Gulbarga having jurisdiction over Bidar unit of the Company demanding tax
along with interest and penaities on "Marketing support’ services received from M s. Sai Life Sciences Inc, USA for the financial years 2017-18 and 2018-19, Total amount involved
along with interest and penalty is ¥ 73.09. The Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner (GST Appeals), Gulbarga for the financial year 2017-18 and waitiny for personal
hearing With regards to financial vear 2018-19, the Company is in process of filing appeal before Commissioner (GST Appeals) Guibarga

(viii) The Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinany course of business including litigation pending betore various tax authorities,
including those mentioned in above points. The uncertaintics and possible refunds are dependent on the outceme of different iegal processes, which have been invoked by the
claimants or the Company, as the case may be. and therefore cannot be accurately predicted . The Company engages reputed professional advisors to protect its interest and has been
advised that it has strong l2gal positions against such disputes. Management believes that it has a reasonable cuse in its defense of the proceedings and accordingly no further provision
is required

(i%) Subsequent Lo the closure of book of accounis for the vear ending March 2024, (he Company has recerved Order dated 30 April 2024 for tax demand of ¥ 4.5 regarding the audit
of Telangana GST registration for the financial year 2018-19. The Company is in pracess of evaluating the grounds for filing an appeal before the appellate authorities.

1) The Company has received a demand notice dated 23 March 2024 relating to Assessment Year 2022-23 from the Commissioner of Income Tax {Appeals) for ¥ 18.27 The

Company has filed an appeal and is pending for hearing

Othier statutory disclosures
i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.
i) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck oft’
iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto cureency or Virtual Currency during the tinancial year.
v) The Company has nnt been declared wilfut defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority
vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entityties), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
[ntermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like to er on behalt of the Ulimate Bencficiaries

vii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreizn entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Group shall

{a) directly or indirectly fend or tnvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantec, security or the like on behalf of tiie Ultimate Beneliciarics
viii) The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books ol account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Tncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as. search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961

Micro, Small and Mediuvm Enterprises
Disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to micro and small enterprises as at 31 March 2024 & 31 March 2023 has been made in the financial statements based on information
received and available with the Company The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at the end of cach accounting year* 141.29 124.29
Interest Jue thereon remaining unpaid to any suppliers as at the end of the accounting vear - -
The amount of interest paid by the Company along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day - -
during the year
The amount of interest due and payable [or the period ol delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appainted 3.03 157
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act [
| The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year** 0.04 691 |
The umount of turther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until such dale when the interest dues as - -

above are actually paid to the small enterprise

* Includes amounts payable to trade creditars 2 80.13 (31 March 2023° % 73 99) and capital creditors T 01 10 (31 March 2023: 250 30)
** [ncludes amounts payable to trade creditors 2 9.94 (31 March 2023: %6 91)

This information is required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Entetprises Development Act, 2006 and has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information avaiiable with the Company Auditors have placed refiance on the information provided by the management




Sai Life Sciences Limited
CIN-U24110TG1999PLC030970

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions. except share data and where otherwise stated)

44 Leases

Company as a lessee : The Company has lease contracts for land, buildings. plant and equipment, vehicles and compulers, with
lease period varying between | to 51 years. The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the

leased assets.
Lease liabilities

Particulars

Opening balance

Additions
Deletions
Accretion of interest
Payments

Closing balance
Current
Non-current

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

Depreciation: Right-of-use assets

Finance cost: Intcrest on Iease liabilitics

Short term and variable lcase payments (Refer note below)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1.695.94 1,507.68
303.98 496.02
(29.23) (4.44)
191.67 177.07
(587.89) (480.39)
1,574.47 1,695.94
358.98 329.17
1,215.49 1.366.77

For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

293.07 268.45
191.67 177.07
275 50.89

Note: The Company applics the short-term lcase recognition exemption (o its short-term leascs of certain premises taken on lease
(i.e.. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Amount recognised in Statement of Cash flow
Particulars
Cash outflows for leases

Interest portion of lease liabilities

Principal portion of lease liabilities

191.67 177.07
396.22 303.32
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Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN-UZ4110TG1999PLCO30970

Notes to the Standalone linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
{All amounts 1n Tndian Rupees mithans, except share data and where otherwise stated)

46 The Code on Social Security. 2020 (‘Cade’) relating to employee benefits duriny employment and past employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020 The
Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on wiuch the Code will come in ta effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code
when 1t comes inte eftect and will record any related impact in the penod the Code becomes ettective.
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With effect from 1 April 2023 the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MC.A) has made it mandatory for companies to mamtain an audit rail throughout the year for transactions
impacting bocks of accounts.

The Company uses accounting software for mamtaining the books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail and has defined process to enable audit trail of books of
accounts The Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 has cnabled the feature of recording audit trail (edit lag) facility exeept for the following
- in respect of accounting software, audit trail feature was not enabled for the period 01 April 2023 to 30 March 2024 post which audit trail feature was enabled at the application

ievel

- in respect of a accounting software operated by a thurd party software service provider for maintaming payroll records, independent auditor’s system and orgamisation controls
report does not cover audit trail related reporting for the period from 01 January 2024 © 31 March 2024

The previous year's figures have been re-grouppedirectassified where necessary to confirm current year's classificalion
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